
Contacting the Council:
Switchboard 01782 717717  .  Fax 01782 711032  .  DX 20959  .  Text 07800 140048 
E-mail webmaster@newcastle-staffs.gov.uk  .  www.newcastle-staffs.gov.uk

Dear Sir/Madam,

You are summoned to attend the meeting of the Borough Council of Newcastle-under-Lyme to be 
held in the Council Chamber, Civic Offices, Merrial Street, Newcastle-under-Lyme, 
Staffordshire, ST5 2AG on Wednesday, 7th September, 2016 at 7.00 pm.

B U S I N E S S 

1 Apologies  
2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

To receive declarations of interest from Members on items contained within this agenda.

3 MINUTES OF A PREVIOUS MEETING  (Pages 5 - 8)
To consider the minutes of the previous meeting(s)

4 Mayors Announcements  
5 REPORTS OF THE CHAIRS OF THE SCRUTINY COMMITTEES  (Pages 9 - 10)

Chairs are requested to submit written reports to the Democratic Services Manager by 
(TWO DAYS BEFORE MEETING)

a) Finance, Resources and Partnerships Scrutiny Committee
b) Active and Cohesive Communities Scrutiny Committee
c) Cleaner, Greener and Safer Communities Scrutiny Committee
d) Economic Development and Enterprise Scrutiny Committee
e) Health and Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee

6 REPORTS OF THE CHAIRS OF THE REGULATORY 
COMMITTEES  

(Pages 11 - 12)

PLEASE NOTE THAT PRAYERS WILL BE HELD AT 6.50PM BEFORE THE 
COMMENCEMENT OF THE BUSINESS OF THE COUNCIL. 

THE MAYOR REQUESTS THAT ANY MEMBER WISHING TO PARTICIPATE IN 
PRAYERS BE IN ATTENDANCE IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBER BY NO LATER THAN 
6.45PM.



Chairs are requested to submit written reports to the Democratic Services Manager by 
(two days before meeting).

a) Audit and Risk Committee
b) Planning Committee 
c) Licensing Committee
d) Public Protection Committee

7 COUNCIL SIZE SUBMISSION TO THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT 
BOUNDARY COMMISSION FOR ENGLAND  

(Pages 13 - 40)

8 Civic Hub and Ryecroft  (Pages 41 - 48)
9 NOTICE OF MOTION  (Pages 49 - 50)

A notice of motion other than those listed in Standing Order 19 must reach the Chief 
Executive ten clear days before the relevant Meeting of the Council.

10 QUESTIONS TO THE MAYOR, CABINET MEMBERS AND 
COMMITTEE CHAIRS.  
In accordance with Procedure Rule 11, questions must be submitted at least 24 hours 
before the meeting. Any questions considered urgent will only be accepted with the 
agreement of the Mayor prior to the meeting. 

11 RECEIPT OF PETITIONS  
To receive from Members any petitions which they wish to present to the Council.

12 STANDING ORDER 18 - URGENT BUSINESS  
To consider any communications which pursuant to Standing Order No18 are, in the 
opinion of the Mayor, of an urgent nature and to pass thereon such resolutions as may be  
deemed necessary.

13 DISCLOSURE OF EXEMPT INFORMATION  
To resolve that the public be excluded from the meeting during consideration of the 
following report(s) as it is likely that there will be disclosure of exempt information as 
defined in paragraphs 1, 2 and 3 in Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 
1972.

14 Civic Hub and Ryecroft  (Pages 51 - 52)

Yours faithfully

Chief Executive



Contacting the Council:
Switchboard 01782 717717  .  Fax 01782 711032  .  DX 20959  .  Text 07800 140048 
E-mail webmaster@newcastle-staffs.gov.uk  .  www.newcastle-staffs.gov.uk

NOTICE FOR COUNCILLORS

1. Fire/Bomb Alerts

In the event of the fire alarm sounding, leave the building immediately, following 
the fire exit signs.  Do not stop to collect personal belongings, do not use the lifts.

Fire exits are to be found either side of the rear of the Council Chamber and at the 
rear of the Public Gallery.

On exiting the building Members, Officers and the Public must assemble at the car 
park at the rear of the Aspire Housing Office opposite to the Civic Offices.  DO 
NOT re-enter the building until advised to by the Controlling Officer.

2. Attendance Record

Please sign the Attendance Record sheet, which will be circulating around the 
Council Chamber.  Please ensure that the sheet is signed before leaving the 
meeting.

3. Mobile Phones

Please switch off all mobile phones before entering the Council Chamber.

4. Tea/Coffee

Refreshments will be available at the conclusion of the meeting, or in the event of a 
break occurring, during that break.

5. Notice of Motion

A Notice of Motion other than those listed in Standing Order 19 must reach the 
Chief Executive ten clear days before the relevant Meeting of the Council.  Further 
information on Notices of Motion can be found in Section 5, Standing Order 20 of 
the Constitution of the Council.



FIELD_TITLE

MOTION (ORIGINAL)
A proposal is put by a Member and 

seconded by another who may reserve 
his/her speech until later or speaks 

now

This must not rescind a 
resolution or rejected 

resolution of the previous 6 
months except in 

accordance with Rule 14

The Mayor may require it to be 
put in writing if not as set out in 

the agenda or report

DEBATE ON THE 
SUBSTANTIVE 

MOTION
Any Member may speak 
once for up to 5 minutes 

solely on the motion 
until such time as the  
Mayor considers the 

matter has been 
sufficiently debated or 

there is a closure motion

A motion may be withdrawn by mover with consent 
of seconder and of the Council which will be granted 

or refused without debate

AMENDMENT (only one at a time)
A member proposes a change to the wording of the 

motion (this can’t negate the original proposal)
 and is seconded

REPLY
Some Members have a right of reply which they 
need not exercise; in order:
 Mover of  any amendment
 Original mover
 Chair of Committee or Sub-Committee if a 

motion is a committee recommendation
 Leader

AMENDMENT DEBATE
Any Member may speak once for up to 5 minutes solely on 

the amendment until such time as the Mayor considers there 
has been sufficient debate or a closure motion

AMENDMENT REPLY
Some Members have a right of reply in this order:
 Amendment mover
 Original motion mover
 Chair where motion was a committee 

recommendation
 Leader

CONSENT
The original 

mover consents 
to amendment

NAMED VOTE
If 12 ask a vote must be 

named

AMENDMENT VOTE
 Show of hands majority
 Mayor has(2nd) casting vote

NAMED VOTE
If 12 ask a vote must be 

named

FURTHER AMENDMENT
Or go to debate on 
substantive motion

YES
Becomes the new 

substantive motion

NO
Return to original 

motion

SUBSTANTIVE VOTE
 A show of hands 

majority
 Mayor has (2nd) 

casting vote

YES
Resolution of the 

Council

NO
Resolution falls

Another motion may 
be moved



Council - 13/07/16

1

COUNCIL

Wednesday, 13th July, 2016
Time of Commencement: 7.00 pm

Present:- The Mayor Councillor Ian Wilkes – in the Chair

Councillors

Officers

Apologies

Allport, Bailey, Burch, Burgess, Cooper, Miss J Cooper, Dillon, 
Eagles, Fear, Frankish, Gardner, L Hailstones, P Hailstones, 
S Hambleton, T Hambleton, Harper, Heesom, Holland, 
Huckfield, Johnson, Jones, Kearon, Loades, Matthews, 
Naylon, Northcott, Olszewski, Owen, Panter, Parker, Pickup, 
Proctor, Reddish, Robinson, Rout, Shenton, Simpson, Spence, 
Stubbs, Sweeney, J Tagg, Turner, Walklate, Welsh, White, 
G Williams, J Williams, Winfield, Woolley and Wright

David Adams, Neale Clifton - Executive Director (Regeneration 
and Development), John Sellgren and Kelvin Turner

Councillor(s) Astle, Beech, Bloor, Mancey, S Tagg, Waring and 
Wing

1. APOLOGIES 

Apologies were received from Councillors Astle, Beech, Bloor, Mancy, S.Tagg, 
Waring, Wing,

2. TRIBUTE TO COUNCILLOR BRAITHWAITE 

Members paid tribute to the late Councillor Eileen Braithwaite for her commitment to 
representing the residents of the Borough.  Members wished to celebrate the life of 
Councillor Braithwaite and all that she had achieved.

3. JO COX MP 

Members paid tribute to Jo Cox MP whose life had been tragically ended as a result 
of an attack.  The loss of the MP was felt by all political parties and was described by 
members as an attack on democracy and the foundations of 
liberty.

Members stood in silent tribute to the memory of Councillor Braithwaite and Jo Cox 
MP. 

 

4. MINUTES 

Resolved: That the minutes of the meeting held on 18 May 2016 be 
agreed as a correct record. 

5. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

There were no declarations of interest stated.



Council - 13/07/16

2

6. MAYORS ANNOUNCEMENTS 

Congratulations were extended to Councillor Mancey on the birth of her daughter.

The Mayor was looking forward to attending the Summer Degree Ceremony at Keele 
University and had been proud to attend the recent graduation ceremony at 
Staffordshire University. 

7. TREASURY MANAGEMENT ANNUAL REPORT 2015-16 

The portfolio holder for Finance, IT and Customer Service introduced the Treasury 
Management Annual Report for 2015/16, which had been produced in line with 
legislative requirements.

Resolved: That the report be noted.

8. APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR - PUBLIC PROTECTION COMMITTEE 

Resolved: That Councillor S Hambleton be appointed as Chair of the Public 
Protection Committee. 

9. APPOINTMENT OF REPRESENTATIVE TO OUTSIDE BODIES  - UNITED 
CHARITIES 

Resolved: That Councillor Turner be appointed as the Borough Council 
representative on the United Charities Outside Body.

10. THE CONSTITUTION - CONSEQUENTIAL CHANGES TO OFFICER SCHEME OF 
DELEGATIONS 

This item was withdrawn from the agenda prior to consideration.

11. UPDATE ON PREVIOUS PETITIONS 

There was no update on previous petitions.

12. ARRANGEMENTS FOR MEMBER MEETINGS 

The portfolio holder, for Policy, People and Partnerships introduced this report which 
set out the recommendations arising from an LGA Peer Review of the democratic 
decision making structures commissioned by this authority.

Resolved (i) That the following committees be disbanded with immediate 
effect:- 

Joint Parking Committee
Member Development Panel
Asset Policy Committee
Governance Committee (on completion of its current work 
programme)

Resolved (ii) That the Audit and Risk Committee and Standards Committee 
be merged.



Council - 13/07/16

3

Resolved (iii) That the recommendation in relation to the Staffing Committee 
and Employee Consultative Committee be deferred pending 
further details on the proposed Joint Negotiating and 
Consultation Committee and the Member Appeal Panel. 

Resolved (iv) That the following member/officer working groups be 
established under the support of the relevant Executive 
Director or Head of Service:-

Kidsgrove Leisure Centre Working Group
Newcastle Almshouse Charity
Parish Councils Forum

Resolved (v) That the Conservation Advisory Working Group be retained in 
its current form.

Resolved (vi) That the Constitution Working Group be retained as a 
member/officer working group comprising a member from 
each group and add to its remit a role to keep under review 
member support and development.  The working group be 
retitled the Constitution and Member Support Working Group.

Resolved (vii) That the Constitution be amended to reflect the changes in (i) 
to (vi) above.

Resolved (viii) That the Group Leaders with the Chief Executive keep under 
review the arrangements for scrutiny to ensure that these are 
efficient and effective.

Resolved (vix) That the Constitution and Member Support Working Group 
give consideration and make recommendations on the 
scheduling of meetings to make best use of member and 
officer time.

13. STATEMENT OF THE LEADER OF THE COUNCIL 

The Leader submitted a report which provided an update to members on the 
activities and decisions of the Cabinet since the last meeting of full Council on 
18 May, 2016.

Resolved: That the report be noted.

14. REPORTS OF THE CHAIRS OF SCRUTINY COMMITTEES 

Resolved: That the reports of the Scrutiny Chairs be noted

15. REPORTS OF THE CHAIRS OF THE  REGULATORY COMMITTEES 

Resolved: That the reports of the Chairs of the Audit and Risk Committee and 
Planning Committee be noted



Council - 13/07/16

4

16. NOTICE OF MOTION 

A motion was received, proposed by Councillor Holland, seconded by Councillor 
Fear regarding the EU Referendum.  Subsequently an amendment to the motion was 
submitted which was proposed by Councillor Shenton and seconded by Councillor 
Reddish.

Members debated the motion and amendment and a vote was taken on the 
amendment as set out below.

The Council notes that the people of the Borough voted by a large majority of 43,457 
(63%) to 25,477 (37%), that the United Kingdom should leave the European Union.
This Council respects the democratic decision of the people of Newcastle and will 
focus on serving all residents during the current period of national uncertainty.
The Council is extremely concerned about the worst rise on record of reports of hate 
crime to the police nationally since the referendum result.  Our council condemns 
racism, xenophobia and hate crimes unequivocally and will ensure that steps are 
taken to tackle such behaviour. We are sure that the vast majority of Newcastle 
residents, however they voted in the referendum; share our concern about any 
increase in hate crimes.
The Council calls upon the government to replace any funding lost from the Borough 
as a result of leaving the EU, and in particular, (in the light of the severe shortfall of 
funds for our local hospital) that extra funding promised by the leave campaign for 
the NHS be honoured.

The council resolves that the Chief Executive writes to all MPs representing this 
Borough to enlist their support in ensuring that all residents of the Borough are 
protected and supported during the process of leaving the EU, when that process is 
finally enacted by the current Government.

Resolved: That the amendment to the motion above be carried.

Councillor Loades abstained from voting and asked that this be recorded.

17. RECEIPT OF PETITIONS 

There were no petitions received.

18. STANDING ORDER 18 - URGENT BUSINESS 

There were no items of urgent business.

THE MAYOR COUNCILLOR IAN WILKES
Chair

Meeting concluded at 10.15 pm



Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 

Interim report from Chair of Cleaner Greener and Safer Scrutiny Committee
Note: a survey of subways conducted by members of the above committee is underway;the survey 
sheet is attached to this report

Subways in Newcastle..and  some roundabout structures
The issues;

 Joint responsibility for a poor quality public domain.The County Council takes total 
responsibility for these structures. The Borough Council sweeps the ground surface of 
subways solely

 Lack of money (or dedicated budget) to get standards up

Specifics
1. Risk to reputation of the Borough Council due to poor experience in subways and near 

roundabouts..battered and missing crash barriers
2. Increased risk to pedestrians from storm water flowing into subways and not getting away 

down drains
3. Impact of increasing graffiti..subways seen as places to avoid
4. High cost of continuing need to clean off graffiti
5. Lack of engagement with Councillors and members of the public about the issues

What’s been done /positives
1. Joint meetings NBC/SCC: barrel roofs repainted white, new brighter LED lights with sacrificial 

covers (against graffiti )
2. Forthcoming improvement safety works to Grosvenor Roundabout. BUT has it swallowed up 

budget for the coming year acc.to officers at County
3. Newcastle’s BID commissioned and found funding for a number of artworks..these are 

enjoyed and appear to be respected ..ie not scribbled over

List of problems and ways forward
1. Drains need more frequent suction
2. Joint volunteer approach NBC to set dates and provide materials and call for volunteers 

among Councillor base and known volunteer groups to clean sections over a number of 
months decide whether to give publicity

3. Explore idea of ‘sponsor a sub’ fund seeking from businesses (BID/NBC)
4. SCC to support ideas with County wide approaches to issue.and/ or where is it done better 

in UK?
5. Build on the popular ‘Art in Subways’  detail needed on how SCC/NBC/BID can work on 

joint approaches to gain substantial funds for  approaches : eg The Big Draw The Astley 
Project

6. Recruit Community Payback teams without delay to start on a publicly visible and ongoing 
approach to cleaning off graffiti

7. Some subways could be closed entirely..start the process of identification

Wenslie Naylon  Chair Cleaner Greener Safer Scrutiny Committee NULBC



Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 



Report from Chair of Audit and Risk Committee meeting 4th July 2016

At the meeting, the following reports were presented/noted/ reviewed:

 Terms of reference for the Committee ( annual review)
 Work Plan 2016/17 detailing the work of the committee and the regular reports that will be 

presented to the Committee. Managing Risk training is to be arranged and all members will 
be invited to attend

 Health and Safety 12 month report , 
 Corporate Risk Management report for the period Jan- Mar 2016 which advised no new risks 

have been identified
 Treasury Management Annual Report 2015/6- a Statutory report and subsequently reported 

to Full Council on 13th July 2016
 Draft Statement of Accounts 2015/6 – Another Statutory report in respect of the outturn for 

the financial year 2015/6. The outturn was within budget and with a small positive variance 
(saving) of £1,648 against a net total expected outturn of £13,830,450. Officers were 
congratulated for this excellent financial management and for completing the accounts in 
advance of the External Auditor’s deadline. 

 Outstanding audit Recommendations and Assurance Statement Qtr 4
 Internal Audit section Annual Report 2015-16. Statutory report detailing the performance 

against the audit plan for 2015/16. This report was for information and detailed the areas 
that the Internal Audit section has reviewed

 Review of the Effectiveness of the Audit Committee and a Review of the effectiveness of 
Internal Audit- the findings of both reports were noted as part of the next item

 Annual Governance Statement (AGS)- Statutory report that forms part of the Account and 
Audit Regulations 2015. The AGS must be published along with the audited financial 
statements of the authority.

 Planned Audit fee for 2016/17 – This was reported to the committee as £55,002. The 
Accounts must be completed in a much earlier timeframe in 2016/17. The Finance section 
officers successfully used this timescale as a ‘dry run’, in 2015/16. 

Cllr Sarah Pickup

Chair of Audit and Risk Committee





Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 

REPORT TO COUNCIL

7 SEPTEMBER 2016

COUNCIL SIZE SUBMISSION TO THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT BOUNDARY 
COMMISSION FOR ENGLAND 

Submitted by: Chief Executive

Portfolio: Leader of the Council

Wards affected: All

Purpose

To enable the Council to make a submission to the Local Government Boundary 
Commission for England concerning its view of the future size of the Council at the start of 
the review process.

Recommendation

To approve the document in Appendix 1 of the report to go forward to the Local Government 
Boundary Commission for England as the Council’s submission regarding its preferred 
proposal for the future size of the Council.

1. Background

1.1 At its meeting on 25 November 2015 the Council considered a report concerning the 
future size of the Council.  The Council resolved:

a) That the current council size of 60 Members should be reduced

b) That the number of elected Members should be in a range between 42 and 48.

1.2 The process for electoral review is set out in the Local Government Boundary 
Commission for England’s document ‘Electoral reviews: technical guidance’.  This 
can be found on the Commission’s website at:

https://www.lgbce.org.uk/__data/assets/pdf_file/0006/10410/technical-guidance-2014.pdf

2. The review process

2.1 Members received a presentation from representatives of the Local Government 
Boundary Commission for England outlining the process for the review.  The 
Commission’s technical guidance document details the process for reviews.  In the 
presentation and in the guidance the Commission has indicated that at the start of 
the review process it will expect the Council to set out its own view about the 
proposed future size of the Council.

3. The Commission’s information requirements

3.1 In order to conduct a review effectively and thoroughly the Commission requires 
some information before a review is commenced.  The requirements are set out in 
the Commission’s electoral review technical guidance.  In this document the 
Commission advises that Council size is the starting point for any electoral review 



Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 

since this determines the average number of electors per councillor to be achieved 
across all wards in the Borough.

3.2 In the technical guidance document the Commission gives a template for Council 
submissions concerning Council size.  The document in Appendix 1 presents the 
information requested by the Commission in the format recommended.

3.3 The Commission considers that councils should take the opportunity provided by an 
electoral review to consider how many councillors they need, having regard to their 
political management arrangements, regulatory and scrutiny functions and the 
representational role of councillors, both in terms of their ward work and representing 
the council on external bodies.  Much of this work was undertaken by the 
Governance Committee in preparing the report which was submitted to the Council in 
November 2015.

4. Submission regarding future council size

4.1 Officers have prepared a draft submission of the information required by the 
Commission.   The submission which has been prepared has drawn upon the 
information which was presented to the Council in the report considered in November 
2015 and on which basis the Council set the range for future size of between 42 and 
48 elected Members.  The information in the submission complements this with other 
information specifically requested by the Commission in the ‘Electoral reviews : 
technical guidance’ document.

4.2 Guidance sought from the Commission in the preparation of this report has confirmed 
that in making a submission about future size the Council needs to recommend a 
specific number of Councillors rather than the range which was resolved by the 
Council in November 2015.  Following consultation with all of the Political Groups it is 
considered that it is appropriate to recommend to the Commission a council size 
within the range agreed in November 2015.  The submission itself provides the 
detailed rational for the Council in future to be made up of 44 elected Members.  This 
is considered to be a robust proposal based on the evidence set out in the report to 
Council in November 2015 and some further and more detailed work which has been 
undertaken since that time.

4.3 Whilst it is known that the Commission will take the Council’s preferred council size 
as its starting point it does reserve the right to “change this number slightly in order to 
ensure better levels of representation across the district” (paragraph 4.29 of the 
Commission’s technical guidance)  where this is necessary.  Therefore the Council 
should be advised that whilst the Boundary Commission will take the Council’s 
preferred number as its starting point it does reserve the right to vary that number in 
the final proposal.

4.4 A copy of the draft submission is given in Appendix 1 of this report.

5. Legal and Statutory Implications

5.1 Electoral reviews are conducted under the provisions of the Local Democracy, 
Economic Development and Construction Act 2009.

6. Finance and Resource Implications

7. Major risks



Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 

8. Earlier resolutions

Council resolution of 25 November 2015

9. Background papers

Local Government Boundary Commission for England ‘Electoral reviews : technical 
guidance’ April 2014

10. Appendices

Appendix 1 - Council size submission to The Local Government Boundary Commission for 
England 

The appendices to the submission itself have not been included in the document at 
Appendix 1 as these are all published documents and in the public domain.  Below are web 
links to these documents.

Appendix A – Member Development Strategy

http://sviam/documents/s19839/Member%20Development%20Strategy%202016%20-
2017.pdf 

Appendix B – Planning Delegations  

http://sviam/documents/s17653/DELEGATIONS%20-%20Planning%20June%202015.pdf

Appendix C – Licensing Delegations  

http://sviam/documents/s17651/DELEGATIONS%20-%20Licensing%20May%202014.pdf 

Appendix D – Role Description for Councillors  

http://sviam/documents/s15974/APPENDIX%2017%20-
%20ROLE%20OF%20COUNCILLORS.pdf 

Appendix E – Member Survey  

http://sviam/documents/s18263/Appendix%201%20Members%20Survey.pdf 

Appendix F – Member Survey – Summary Findings  

http://sviam/documents/s18261/Appendix%201-
ElectoralArrangements%20Summary%20Findings.pdf 

Appendix G – LGA Peer Review Report  

http://sviam/documents/s15296/NuL%20Cttee%20Review%20Report%20-
%20finaldraft150115.pdf  

Appendix H – Scrutiny Call-in Flow Chart  

http://sviam/documents/s19839/Member%20Development%20Strategy%202016%20-2017.pdf
http://sviam/documents/s19839/Member%20Development%20Strategy%202016%20-2017.pdf
http://sviam/documents/s17653/DELEGATIONS%20-%20Planning%20June%202015.pdf
http://sviam/documents/s17651/DELEGATIONS%20-%20Licensing%20May%202014.pdf
http://sviam/documents/s15974/APPENDIX%2017%20-%20ROLE%20OF%20COUNCILLORS.pdf
http://sviam/documents/s15974/APPENDIX%2017%20-%20ROLE%20OF%20COUNCILLORS.pdf
http://sviam/documents/s18263/Appendix%201%20Members%20Survey.pdf
http://sviam/documents/s18261/Appendix%201-ElectoralArrangements%20Summary%20Findings.pdf
http://sviam/documents/s18261/Appendix%201-ElectoralArrangements%20Summary%20Findings.pdf
http://sviam/documents/s15296/NuL%20Cttee%20Review%20Report%20-%20finaldraft150115.pdf
http://sviam/documents/s15296/NuL%20Cttee%20Review%20Report%20-%20finaldraft150115.pdf


Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 

http://sviam/documents/s15370/APPENDIX%2010%20Annex%202%20-
%20Call%20in%20flowchart.pdf 

Appendix I – Outside Bodies  

http://sviam/documents/s20123/FULL%20List%20of%20Outside%20Bodies%20for%20Coun
cil%2020052015%20COMPLETE.pdf 

http://sviam/documents/s15370/APPENDIX%2010%20Annex%202%20-%20Call%20in%20flowchart.pdf
http://sviam/documents/s15370/APPENDIX%2010%20Annex%202%20-%20Call%20in%20flowchart.pdf
http://sviam/documents/s20123/FULL%20List%20of%20Outside%20Bodies%20for%20Council%2020052015%20COMPLETE.pdf
http://sviam/documents/s20123/FULL%20List%20of%20Outside%20Bodies%20for%20Council%2020052015%20COMPLETE.pdf


Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 

Council Size Submission

September 2016



Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 

CONTENTS

Introduction 1

Summary of Proposals 1

District Profile 2

Council Priorities 4

Part One – Governance and Decision Making 6

Part Two – Scrutiny Functions 13

Part Three – Representational Role of Councilllors 16

Part Four – The Future 18

Conclusion 20

APPENDICES

A Member Development Strategy

B Planning Delegations

C Licensing Delegations

D Role Description for Councillors

E Member Survey

F Member Survey – Summary Findings

G LGA Peer Review Report

H Scrutiny Call-in Flow Chart

I Outside Bodies



Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 
1

Introduction

In April 2014 Newcastle-under-Lyme Borough Council considered a proposal to change its 
electoral cycle from thirds to whole council elections.  The proposal aimed to realise several 
benefits, not least the potential for greater political stability and a longer term view of policy 
implementation.  The Council agreed to consult interested parties on this proposal via 
various methods between July 2014 and August 2014.  

In November 2014 and after hearing advice from the Chair of the Local Government 
Boundaries Commission, the Council approved the establishment of a Committee with a 
remit to consider its future governance arrangements.  The ‘Governance Review Group’ 
comprises five members of the Council, who have voting rights, and two independent 
members who do not.

Following the publication of the electoral register in March 2015 it was clear that the Council 
had met at least one of the criteria required to trigger a review by the Local Government 
Boundary Commission for England (LGBCE).  

With this in mind the Group focused its efforts on determining the appropriate future size of 
the council as this is the first stage of any such review by the LGBCE.  Due to the fact that 
the matter of the electoral cycle was to be considered in parallel with the issue of the future 
size of the council the Group put forward a range of size options for consideration by 
Council.

At a special meeting of Council in November 2015, members voted to approve a move to 
whole borough elections once every four years.  Furthermore, Council resolved that the 
number of elected members should be reduced from 60 and to be in the range between 42 
and 48.

Summary of Proposals

This submission sets out the Council’s proposal to move to whole borough elections once 
every four years.  In addition it sets out the proposal for a reduction in the number of 
Councillors for Newcastle Borough Council in the range between 42 and 48.  

When considering this, it is recognised that the number of councillors serving on the Council 
has a direct bearing on the pattern of wards.  After full and careful consideration the 
Governance Review Group considered it more appropriate to leave the task of determining a 
pattern of wards to the Boundary Committee.  

When determining these sizing proposals the Council has taken into account a number of 
factors:

 The workload of Councillors
 The analysis report from the LGA Peer Review undertaken in 2014
 The current electoral cycle and the approved move to whole borough elections
 Changes to the way services are provided by the Council
 The financial position of the Council – and of the Country as a whole
 The existing governance arrangements of the Council
 The way in which the council fulfils its scrutiny responsibilities



Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 
2

As part of this submission, the Council used an evidence based approach and has 
undertaken a survey of Councillors, gathering their views and experiences of their workload 
and time commitments.

District Profile

Newcastle-under-Lyme Borough Council is one of eight districts in the County of 
Staffordshire and covers an area of approximately 81.5 square miles (21,106 hectares).  At 
the time of the Census in 2011, Newcastle had a resident population of around 123,900, an 
increase of just 1.5% over the 10 years since the 2001 Census.

Newcastle is part of North Staffordshire conurbation and lies approximately halfway between 
Manchester to the north and Birmingham to the south.  It is an attractive mix of rural villages 
and two main towns – Newcastle and Kidsgrove.  Historically, the town’s growth lay in 
commerce and in the development of its market.  Pottery manufacture and mining have also 
been important to the borough’s development.

The industrial base has changed significantly in the last century, with the closure of local 
mines and the development of the distribution and manufacturing sectors.  The presence of 
the University at Keele, together with the development of its Science Park and new Medical 
School, and the growth in the hi-tech and research industries demonstrates the potential and 
vibrancy of the area.

Key issues for the district include:

 The overall population for Newcastle is projected to increase over the next 10 years 
with significant growth in people aged 65 and over (18% increase) and 85 and over 
(41% increase).  This will present a long-term challenge to local service providers, 
not least primary and social care, housing services, public transport infrastructure 
and community safety.

 Newcastle under Lyme is characterised by significant variations in the level of 
employment, health, economic well-being, housing and overall living standards – the 
difference in life expectancy varies by nine years for men and seven years for women 
between the most affluent and deprived areas.

 The district has areas of considerable affluence but also has three wards that fall into 
the 10 percent most deprived in the country.  There are also pockets of deprivation in 
the generally more affluent rural wards where there are challenges in terms of 
accessibility to facilities and services.

 We have low levels of unemployment and youth unemployment when compared to 
the national average.  However, Newcastle has a higher number of adults with no 
formal qualifications when compared to the national average which may hinder 
economic growth in Newcastle in the future.

 
 Of the c52,000 residential properties within the Borough, over three quarters are 

owner occupied showing the preference for owner occupation.  House prices vary 
greatly across the Borough with rural areas providing an opportunity to attract more 
affluent households into the Borough whilst simultaneously creating challenges to 
meeting local needs.



Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 
3

 Although the current provision of social housing is able to meet the majority of 
housing need there remains a lack of supported accommodation to address the 
needs of vulnerable groups, many of whom face becoming homeless.

Key Statistics (Census 2011)

Age Structure
17% aged 14 and under
65% aged between 15 and 64
18% aged 65 and over

Mean age 40.8 

Households
Number of households 52,574
Average household size 2.3 people
Households with dependent children 25%
Households with one person only 31%
Households with 65+ only 9%
Single pensioners 14%

Ethnicity
95% White
1.2% Mixed
2.8% Asian or Asian British
0.7% Black or Black British
0.3% Other Ethnic Group

Rurality
The Borough of Newcastle is 76% rural, however only 20% of residents live in these areas. 
This equates to an average population density of 1.5 residents per hectare compared to the 
average across the Borough of 5.9.  Population density varies in Newcastle between 59.5 in 
the most built up area and 0.8 in the most rural. 



Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 
4

Council Priorities

The Borough Council’s vision is to “create a borough that is prosperous, clean, healthy and 
safe”.  

Our key priority is that the council works co-operatively with our customers, communities and 
partners to deliver high quality services to our residents.  However there is also clear focus 
on the following three specific priority areas:

Creating a healthy and active community
We work with partners to make sure that residents and visitors are able to access a range of 
facilities and support activities that will enable them to improve their health and quality of life.

At the heart of our borough we want communities that are happy, vibrant and prosperous 
with good health and wellbeing.

We want to reduce health inequalities with a focus on those areas where the council can 
have the greatest impact.  The Health & Wellbeing Strategy outlines our commitment and 
services offer, and supports development of leisure, cultural and community facilities in the 
borough. 

Delivery of a new leisure facility in Kidsgrove is planned with commitment to a new 
swimming pool and facility for the area.  With partners such as Staffordshire County Council 
and Sport England and others, we will work to attract funding to ensure residents and visitors 
are able to access a range of facilities and support activities that will enable them to improve 
their health and quality of life.  

In the last twelve months the Newcastle Partnership has awarded over £233,000 from Public 
Health to benefit the people of the borough to support activities, nutrition and physical 
exercise. Working with partners, we want to continue to deliver high quality services to the 
most vulnerable, despite funding cuts and government reduction. By using information and 
feedback from service users and the community to identify issues and service provision 
gaps, we will develop the provision available, and so reduce health inequalities across the 
borough.

Creating a clean, safe and sustainable borough
We will improve the environment so that everyone can enjoy a safe, sustainable and healthy 
borough.

Residents consistently identify a cleaner and safer borough as a priority for them.  In 
Newcastle we want people to feel safe wherever they are;- in their homes, neighbourhoods, 
parks and open spaces or when accessing towns, shopping centres and places of work.

We believe that effective partnership working is essential in improving outcomes for our 
communities and ensuring that our collective resources are used efficiently and effectively. 
Working with our partners in this time of austerity, we will continue to commission services 
and deliver initiatives to assist vulnerable residents and to contribute to preventative 
approaches which positively impact on improving health and wellbeing and community 
safety in our communities. 

Our Operations team work hard to maintain high levels of cleanliness and environmental 
quality in our streets and green spaces. We work with local communities to identify issues 
and prioritise services and we support people in volunteering to take care of their 



Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 
5

neighbourhoods and promote community pride in our borough as a great place to live, work 
and visit.

Create a borough of opportunity
In order to maximise investment and encourage enterprise and employment we work with 
partners to generate activities that will create opportunities for improving the wealth, 
prosperity and housing choices of our residents.

Both the Borough Council and our partners at Staffordshire County Council have now taken 
formal decisions agreeing to the regeneration of  the Ryecroft area of the town centre and 
the creation of a public sector hub in Newcastle.  To enable the wider redevelopment of the 
Ryecroft area, and to deliver all the benefits in terms of new jobs and a boost to the town 
centre economy, the Council will move out of the Civic Offices by April 2017 and to a new 
public sector hub working alongside our partners.  This will encourage co-production working 
and improved conditions, which is offset by savings through energy saving and efficient 
accommodation.

Other opportunities gained by delivery of an effective, future proof Local Plan to enhance the 
housing offer and further development of the Borough, will be beneficial both economically 
and for the wellbeing of all.  Support through improvements to the infrastructure of the 
borough would also help to provide the mechanism to promote business growth and attract 
residents to an area with growing employment opportunities. 

A focal point will be the re-building of the hearts of our towns and villages, using successful 
approaches and expertise gained from other regeneration sites in the borough.  The 
development of the area around Kidsgrove railway station/transport Hub area being one of 
the exciting opportunities which can benefit from this approach.

Funding for the Capital programme is essential to enable the continued delivery of quality 
services and ensure opportunities available within the borough are taken advantage of. Key 
to future plans and the availability of funds, is the successful implementation of the Asset 
Disposal programme, together with the development of a master plan for the greater Keele 
area. 

We will continue to work with our partners to maximise investment and encourage enterprise 
and employment – generating activities that will create opportunities for improving the 
wealth, prosperity and housing choices of our residents.



Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 
6

Part One - Governance and Decision Making

“The Commission aims to ensure that councils have the right number of councillors to take 
decisions and manage their business in an effective way.  We therefore look at how 
decisions are taken across the authority to assess the volume and distribution of 
responsibility amongst elected members and staff.”

LGBCE Technical Guidance 2012

THE BOROUGH COUNCILLORS

Newcastle Borough Council currently has 60 councillors representing 24 wards across 
21,108 hectares, with each ward represented by either two or three councillors.  Elections to 
the Borough Council are held in three out of every four years with each councillor being 
elected for a four year term of office.  In the fourth year, when the County Council elections 
are held, there are no Borough elections.  The principal duty of councillors is to the 
community of Newcastle as a whole; however there is also an essential duty to the 
constituents of their ward, including those who did not vote for them.

The political balance of the Council for 2016/17 is 28 Labour; 21 Conservatives; four 
Borough Independents; three Liberal Democrats; two Newcastle Independents; and two UK 
Independence Party (UKIP) members.

Member Development and Training

Newcastle Borough Council signed up to the West Midlands Member Development Charter 
in February 2008 and was awarded the Primary Level in October 2010.  The Council 
dedicates significant resource into providing development opportunities and training for 
elected members.  A Member Training and Development Strategy was adopted in May 2009 
and is reviewed every year.  A copy of the Strategy is attached at Appendix A.

The training and development programme is managed by officers and is overseen by the 
Member Development Panel which consists of 9 councillors.  The current membership 
comprises 4 Labour members, 3 Conservative, 1 Liberal Democrat and one member from 
the Borough Independent Group.

As part of its work plan the Member Development Group liaises with appropriate officers 
within the Council to prioritise areas for development.  One of the current priorities is for all 
members to be provided with a tablet in order to make mobile communication more 
accessible and to reduce reliance on hard copy committee papers.  This priority supports the 
council’s aim to improve agile working for both staff and members.

LEADERSHIP

Following the Borough elections in May 2016, when no political party gained overall control 
of the Council, a two-year working agreement was signed by the Labour Group and the 
Borough Independents.

Newcastle Borough Council operates under a Leader with Cabinet arrangement and has 
done so since 2000.  The Leader is elected by Council at its annual meeting, holds office for 
a four year period and will appoint a Deputy Leader and other members of the Cabinet as 
they see fit.



Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 
7

The Cabinet consists of seven members each with responsibility for one of the following 
portfolios:

Policy, People and Partnerships – Cllr Elizabeth Shenton (Leader)
Finance, IT and Customer Services – Cllr Terry Turner (Deputy Leader)
Operational Services – Cllr Ann Beech
Communities and Social Cohesion – Cllr Tony Kearon
Leisure and Culture – Cllr Amelia Rout
Town Centres, Property and Business – Cllr John Williams
Planning and Housing – Cllr Kyle Robinson

Feedback from members outside the executive suggests that some councillors consider their 
role to be full-time; however many have work commitments outside of their role as elected 
member which means this is not possible.  The roles of Leader and Deputy Leader are 
generally considered to be full-time.

A full scheme of delegations is maintained in the Council’s Constitution and can be found 
here http://moderngov.newcastle-staffs.gov.uk/mgAi.aspx?ID=8553#mgDocuments 

THE MAYOR

Earliest records show that there has been a Mayor in Newcastle since 1318.

The Mayor is elected each year by Members of the Borough Council at its Annual Meeting, 
which is held towards the end of May.  The Annual Council is referred to as the "Mayor 
Making" and takes place in the Council Chamber at the Civic Offices.  At this meeting the 
Council will also appoint a Deputy Major who will deputise for the Mayor as and when 
required and appropriate.  Both the Mayor and the Deputy Mayor will hold office for a period 
of one year.  Whilst in office both will adopt a non-political role and have key roles and duties 
including:

Ceremonial Role 
As first citizen of the Borough the Mayor represents the Borough at Civic functions both 
locally and nationally and fulfils all the traditional ceremonial functions of the Mayor.  In any 
year it is usual for the Mayor to attend in the region of 350 engagements.  The majority of 
these engagements occur within the Borough.

Chairing the Council Meetings 
The Mayor and in their absence the Deputy Mayor, has the following responsibilities:

 To preside over meetings of the Council so that its business can be carried out efficiently 
and with regard to the rights of Councillors and the interests of the community

 To ensure that the Council meeting is a forum for the debate of matters of concern to the 
local community

 To ensure Councillors who are not members of the Cabinet and do not hold committee 
chairs are able to hold the Cabinet and committee chairs to account

 To uphold and promote the purposes of the Constitution and to interpret the Constitution 
when necessary

 To promote public involvement in the Council's activities
 To attend such civic and ceremonial functions as the Council and they determine 

appropriate
 To determine any matter referred to them requiring an urgent decision under the 

Urgency Procedure Rules set out in the Council's Constitution

http://moderngov.newcastle-staffs.gov.uk/mgAi.aspx?ID=8553#mgDocuments


Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 
8

 To be consulted on any matter where consultation with the Mayor is required under the 
terms of the Constitution.

In liaison with the Executive Director (Resources and Support Services) the Mayor’s 
Secretary looks after the accounting side of the Mayor’s Charity Fund.  The practice is that 
any money raised by the Mayor for charitable purposes is donated to local charities of their 
choice.  The Mayor may choose to raise money for one particular purpose and devote the 
whole of their fund raising efforts in that direction.

THE COUNCIL

The committees and sub-committees of Newcastle under Lyme Borough Council and their 
membership size are:

Council All 60 members
Audit and Risk Committee 7
Licensing Committee 15
Planning Committee 15
Public Protection Committee 13
Health and Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee 11
Active and Cohesive Communities Scrutiny Committee 11
Cleaner, Greener and Safer Communities Scrutiny Committee 11
Economic Development and Enterprise Scrutiny Committee 11
Finance, Resources and Partnerships Scrutiny Committee 11
Conservation Advisory Working Party 5
Employees’ Consultative Committee 7
Grants Assessment Panel 9
Joint Parking Committee 4
Staffing Committee 11
Standards Committee 8

REGULATORY COMMITTEES

Newcastle Borough Council has four regulatory committees: the Audit and Risk Committee, 
the Licensing Committee, the Planning Committee and the Public Protection Committee.

The Audit and Risk Committee

The Audit and Risk Committee meets, on average, five times per year usually at 7.00 pm on 
Monday evenings at the Civic Offices.  The Committee has 7 members (3 Labour, 2 
Conservative, 1 Liberal Democrat and 1 Borough Independent).

Audit and Risk is a standing committee and its membership is determined by Council at its 
first business meeting in May.  Amongst other things, the Committee is responsible for:

 reviewing quarterly Internal Audit progress reports and the main issues arising from 
them

 monitoring the effectiveness of the Council’s risk management arrangements
 reviewing the effectiveness of corporate governance arrangements
 approval of the Council’s Statement of Accounts
 consideration of reports from external inspectors, for example the HSE



Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 
9

The Planning Committee

The Planning Committee sits on average every four weeks usually on Tuesday evenings at 
7.00 pm at the Civic Offices.  Amongst other duties, it meets to consider planning 
applications that have been submitted together with recommendations reported by the Head 
of Planning and Development.  In addition, the committee will consider matters relating to 
the Council’s building control function.

This is a standing Committee and has 16 members with the following allocation of seats: 7 
Labour; 5 Conservative; 1 Liberal Democrat, 1 UKIP; 1 Borough Independent and 1 member 
from the Newcastle Independent Group.  Membership is determined annually by Council at 
its first meeting in May.  The Planning Committee is well attended and there are no 
occasions when the Committee has not been quorate.

It is not envisaged that any upcoming changes to planning legislation will have any 
significant impact on members or their time commitments to this committee.

Scheme of Delegated Authority – Planning

The full scheme of delegated authority is set out in the Council’s constitution (see extract at 
Appendix B) and covers an extensive range of categories of planning and other matters 
which include:

 determining applications for planning permission, consent or approval where 
approval can be granted or refused  in accordance with the policies of the approved 
development plan for the area, including householder developments;

 responding to consultations where there are no identified significant planning issues;
 the making of tree Preservation Orders and to control felling, topping, lopping and re-

planting under such orders.

The Public Protection Committee

The Public Protection Committee meets around five times per year at the Civic Offices 
usually at 7.00 pm.  The Committee has 13 members: 6 Labour, 5 Conservative, 1 Liberal 
Democrat and 1 Borough Independent.  Membership is determined by Council at its first 
meeting in May.

The Public Protection Committee has responsibility for discharging the powers and duties of 
the Council in relation to licensing and registration, excluding those matters which relate to 
the Licensing Act 2003 and the Gambling Act 2005 delegated to the Licensing Committee.  
The Committee also oversees issues that impact on public safety, including:

 Food Safety Control
 Infectious Disease Control
 Health Education and Promotion
 Home Safety
 Animal Welfare
 Pest Control
 Atmospheric Pollution Control

Matters relating to Hackney Carriage and Private Hire licences are dealt with by the Public 
Protection Committee or are delegated to the Chief Executive.



Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 
10

The Licensing Committee

The Licensing Committee meets to deal with all matters under the Licensing Act 2003 and 
the Gambling Act 2005 delegated from Full Council and the Council’s policy relating to 
licensing. 

The Committee has 15 members: 7 Labour, 5 Conservative, 1 Liberal Democrat, 1 Borough 
Independent and 1 member from the Newcastle Independet Group.  Meetings take place at 
the Civic Offices usually on Tuesdays at 7.00 pm.  There have been no instances where the 
Committee has not been quorate.

Licensing Sub Committee

The Licensing Sub-Committee has 5 members, 3 of whom are Labour, 1 Liberal Democrat 
and 1 Borough Independent.  The Committee generally meets 4 or 5 times a year and its 
main business is to determine applications for licences and permissions by and on behalf of 
the Council.

Scheme of Delegated Authority – Licensing

The full scheme of delegated authority for Licensing is set out in the Council’s constitution 
(see extract at Appendix C)

TIME COMMITMENTS OF COUNCILLORS

There is a formal role description for Councillors as detailed in Appendix D together with role 
descriptions for Leaders, Cabinet members and Chairs of Committees and Scrutiny 
Committees.  

A formal induction for new councillors is delivered following elections in May.  All Chairs and 
Vice Chairs of Committees are encouraged to attend a chairing skills course and members 
who sit on regulatory committees are required to undertake committee specific training prior 
to attending their first meeting.  Any such training is planned and delivered via the Member 
Development Strategy (Appendix A).  

Around 100 meetings are held every year and there can be as many as 5 committee or 
working party meetings per week.  The average number of committee positions per 
councillor is 3.6.  During the period from 1st January 2016 to 31 July 2016 individual 
member attendance at meetings varied between 39% and 100% with an average of 81%.

In April 2015 a survey was sent out to all councillors, a copy of this survey and a summary of 
its findings are attached at Appendices E and F.  27 (45%) councillors completed the survey 
but not all answered every question.

Time commitments of councillors varied amongst the respondents with some attending 2 
meetings a month whilst others reported attendance at least 10.  Time spent preparing for 
these meetings also varied, from up to one hour to over three hours per meeting.

All respondents reported that they spent time dealing with constituent queries and casework 
and again this varied from up to 3 hours a week to as many as 20 hours.

Two thirds of those who responded hold surgeries for residents, some weekly, others 
monthly and others on an ad hoc basis.



Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 
11

Almost two thirds of respondents said that they produce newsletters for their constituents 
and reported that the time commitment to complete these could be from around an hour to 
up to 2 days, dependent on content.  Of the 25 respondents who answered a question 
regarding social media, only 7 said that they engaged with their constituents in this way.

Around half of respondents had held public meetings in their constituency in the last year 
and 85% reported that they had conducted estate walkabouts during that period.  Nearly all 
respondents regularly met with constituents in their homes.

In terms of commitments to other council business almost all reported that they spent at 
least three hours a week attending other meetings, such as attending town and parish 
council meetings, in their capacity as a borough councillor.  Some reported spending as 
many as 20 hours per week attending such meetings.

Councillors have the support of the Member Services team and, as part of the Member 
Development Strategy regularly review their Personal Development Plans which enables 
them to identify any training and support requirements.

GOVERNANCE REVIEW – LGA PEER REVIEW 2015

In December 2014 the Council invited an LGA Peer Review team to conduct a review of its 
democratic decision making structures.  The review team produced their findings in January 
2015 and a copy of the report is attached at Appendix G.

The review was commissioned as part of a wider organisational drive for further efficiency.  It 
was specifically designed to help the council look at the way in which its various committees 
and panels are organised and identify options to consider for the future.

The Peer Review reported their assessment that the democratic decision making 
arrangements at the council demand a lot of time from both members and officers.  This 
arises from the extensive array of formally constituted committees and panels.  The review 
team noted that the number of committees and committee positions is very large when 
compared with similar districts and borough councils that the team benchmarked.  They 
noted that there were well over 100 meetings per year and that the number of committee 
positions per councillor is 3.6, compared to an average of 2.6 amongst comparator councils.

The key recommendations of the peer review were as follows:

 merge the Public Protection and Licensing Committees
 merge the Audit and Risk and Standards Committees
 merge the Active and Cohesive Communities and Health and Wellbeing Scrutiny 

Committees
 review the continued need for the Staffing Committee
 review some of the legacy arrangements, such as the Joint Parking Committee and 

Conservation Advisory Working Party, and whether the council should continue to 
service these bodies.

Other issues raised by the review group included:

 consideration of the scheme of delegation to individual Cabinet members - which 
could speed up decision-making. 



Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 
12

 a review of the scheme of delegation to officers with a view to increasing the levels of 
delegation (the review group identified that the levels of delegation to officers seems 
low compared to many other authorities)

 the reintroduction of a Member’s Bulletin which used to be issued on a regular basis.  
The bulletin was specifically for information items and it is felt that the reintroduction 
of this communication could cut down on the number of reports taken to committees.

These recommendations were considered by the Member Development Panel, the 5 
scrutiny committees and the Audit and Risk Committee.  Feedback was somewhat varied 
and was included into a report to Council together with recommendations which echoed 
many of the findings of the Review Group.  

At its meeting in July 2016, Council received the report and resolved to disband the Joint 
Parking Committee, the Member Development Panel and the Asset Policy Committee with 
immediate effect and to disband the Governance Committee on completion of its current 
work programme.

It was also agreed that the Audit and Risk and Standards Committee be merged.  The 
decision on the Review Group’s recommendation to disband the Staffing Committee has 
been deferred pending further discussion.

Three existing committees will now be established as member/officer working groups under 
the support of the relevant Executive Director.

Responsibility for member development will be added to the remit of the Constitution 
Working Group and will be retitled the Constitution and Member Support Working Group.  
This Group will give consideration and make recommendations on the scheduling of 
meetings to make best use of member and officer time.



Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 
13

Part Two - Scrutiny Functions

“Every Council has mechanisms to scrutinise the executive functions of the Council and 
other bodies.  They also have significant discretion over the kind (and extent) of activities 
involved in that process.  In considering Council size, the Commission will want to satisfy 
itself that these responsibilities can be administered in a convenient and effective way 
through the number of Councillors it recommends.”

LGBCE Technical Guidance 2012

The Council operates 5 thematic scrutiny committees.  Each has their own Chair and Vice 
Chair who are appointed by Council.  Members are drawn from outside the Executive 
(Cabinet) and seats are allocated to achieve political balance.

There should be at least 2 ordinary meetings of each scrutiny committee in every year, 
however most meet between 4 and 6 times.  The quorum for scrutiny meetings is 4 persons.

Within their terms of reference scrutiny committees should focus their attention on the 
Council’s corporate priorities as set out in the Council plan.  Members should achieve an 
understanding of relevant policy frameworks which will allow them to assist in policy 
development and also to review and scrutinise decisions and actions taken in connection 
with their committee’s designated remit.  

Each committee reviews and manages its workload via individual workplans which can be 
influenced by requests from both Council and Cabinet for review of particular areas of 
Council activity, or the activities of other organisations operating within the Borough.

Scrutiny committees are able to establish ad-hoc working parties or focus groups to 
investigate specific topics on behalf of the committee on a time-limited basis.  Members are 
expected to carry out work between meetings, for example site visits, consultation and report 
preparation.  The workload of the scrutiny committees is manageable and there have been 
no instances where there have been too many active projects for them to function effectively.

Key decisions of the Cabinet (or those delegated to officers or members by Cabinet) are 
subject to being called-in by scrutiny and are dealt with in accordance with the flow chart 
shown in Appendix H.

The 5 scrutiny committees and their areas of responsibility are as detailed below:



Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 
14

HEALTH AND WELLBEING SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Health and Wellbeing Scrutiny has 11 members:5 Labour, 4 Conservative, 1 Liberal 
Democrat and 1 Borough Independent.  The Committee has responsibility for overseeing a 
wide range of health and wellbeing topics, including:

 Commissioning of and provision of health 
care services

 Staffordshire Health and Wellbeing 
Board

 University Hospital North Staffordshire 
(UHNS)

 Health Improvement
 Alcohol and drug issues
 Health organisations within the Borough

 North Staffordshire Clinical 
Commissioning Group (CCG)

 Staffordshire County Council Public 
Health

 Combined Healthcare and Stoke and 
Staffordshire NHS Partnership

 Health issues affecting older people
 Strategy development at district and 

County level

ACTIVE AND COHESIVE COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

There are 11 members of this scrutiny committee, 5 Labour members, 4 Conservative, 1 
Borough Independent and 1 member from the Newcastle Independent Group.  The 
Committee is responsible for the following themes:

 Arts Development
 Britain in Bloom
 Cemeteries and Crematorium
 Children and Young People
 Safeguarding Board, Children’s Centre 

District Management Board/Community 
and Learning

 Community Recreation
 Cultural Development
 Health Improvement
 Leisure Facilities
 Museum
 Sports Development

CLEANER SAFER AND GREENER SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

This committee has 11 members, 5 Labour, 4 Conservative, 1 Liberal Democrat and 1 
Borough Independent.  The committee considers matters related to the following subjects:

 Anti-Social Behaviour Orders
 Civil contingencies
 CCTV
 Community Cohesion and Safety
 Community Safety and Section 17
 Decriminalised Parking Enforcement and 

On-Street
 Parking
 Emergency Planning
 Older People
 Highways and transport (Operational)

 Streetscene – Litter, Grounds 
Maintenance, Parks and Gardens

 Street and Community Wardens
 Buses and Concessionary Travel and 

Taxis
 Car Park Management
 Climate Change, Sustainability and 

Energy Efficiency
 Environmental Health
 Flooding and Drainage
 Recycling and Waste Management



Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 
15

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND ENTERPRISE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

This scrutiny committee 11 seats and representation is as follows: 5 Labour, 4 Conservative, 
1 Liberal Democrat, 1 Borough Independent.  Topics covered by this committee include:

 Building Control
 Design and Heritage Champion
 Economic Development
 External Regeneration Funding
 Housing and Homelessness

 Inward Investment/Marketing
 Land and Property (Asset Management)
 Local Enterprise Partnership
 Planning Policy and Development 

Control
 Transport Strategy and Policy (Planning)

FINANCE, RESOURCES AND PARTNERSHIPS SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Finance, Resources and Partnerships Scrunity Committee has 11 members; 5 Labour, 4 
Conservative, 1 Liberal Democrat and 1 Borough Independent.  The remit of the committee 
is as follows:

 Communications and consultation
 Council structure and democracy and 

constitutional review
 Customer contact and customer service 

centres
 Neighbourhood and locality working
 Partnerships: Newcastle Partnership 

Strategic Board
 Performance management and 

monitoring
 Revenues and benefits
 Risk champion
 Accountancy

 Budget
 Capital and revenue expenditure
 Efficiency savings
 Financial monitoring
 Health and safety champion
 Human Resources
 Information and communication
 technology
 Procurement champion
 Treasury management
 Workforce development
 Co-operative Council



Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 
16

Part Three – Representational Role of Councillors

“The Commission understands that there is no single approach to representation and 
members will represent and provide leadership to their communities in different ways.  
However, we are interested in hearing about the extent to which members are routinely 
expected to engage with communities and how this affects workload and responsibilities.  In 
particular, if the Council has defined a role for elected members, the Commission would find 
that evidence interesting.”

LGBCE Technical Guidance 2012

Eight of the borough’s current councillors are also County Councillors, 3 of whom have 
Cabinet or Shadow Cabinet responsibilities.  Also, 21 councillors are serving on either 
Kidsgrove Town Council or on one of the borough’s 9 parish councils.  Feedback from 
individual members indicates that they can spend up to 20 hours per week attending 
meetings in their role as borough councillors outside of ordinary council business.  These 
meetings include parish and town council meetings, residents’ groups, Locality Action 
Partnerships and other multi-agency meetings.

In addition to these local commitments, councillors are also called upon to represent the 
Borough at wider regional and national forums.  For example, the Leader is our 
representative at the Local Government Association and a member of the Cabinet has been 
invited to become involved with the Local Government Information Unit.

OUTSIDE BODIES

Each year, the Council appoints Councillors to a wide range of outside bodies.  These 
include Management Committees of Borough- and County-wide organisations and also 
voluntary organisations serving the community.

The workload associated with the appointments varies, though would normally involve the 
attendance of the Councillor at between 4 and 6 meetings a year at different venues in the 
County.  The number of appointments to each group is normally determined by the needs of 
the body concerned and varies between 1 and 4 Councillors.  A current list of assignments 
to outside bodies can be found at Appendix I.

PARTNERSHIP WORKING

The Newcastle Partnership is the borough’s local strategic partnership.  The Partnership 
represents the different sectors in the Borough and plays a vital role in bringing together a 
range of organisations with a shared purpose through co-operative and co-ordinated joint 
working that will improve the social, economic and environmental wellbeing in the Borough.  

The Leader of the Borough Council Chairs the Partnership and the Deputy Leader acts as 
Vice Chair.  This arrangement is mandated in the Partnership’s constitution.  Meetings take 
place 2 or 3 times per year and last for around 2 hours.

Newcastle-under-Lyme Borough Council has committed to becoming a co-operative council 
and wants to work with partners towards making Newcastle-under-Lyme a co-operative 
Borough.  At the heart of this is a commitment to locality working.  



Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 
17

Locality Action Partnerships (LAPs) represent the Newcastle Partnership’s established 
infrastructure for the delivery of locality working and offer communities access to a range of 
partners to address and deliver against local needs and priorities.  There are nine LAPs in 
the Borough, which are made up of a range of partners from the public, private, community 
and voluntary sectors with an interest in their local area.

Whilst attendance at LAPs is not a requirement of members, all but 16 regularly attend their 
local meetings.  Three councillors are LAP Chairs and a further 3 are Vice Chairs.  Meetings 
generally take place every 6 weeks at a time and venue to suit the needs of the particular 
community in question, and usually last for 2 hours.

Historically, officers in Member Services have liaised directly with local schools to organise 
events connected to Local Democracy Week.  Several schools engage with this programme 
every year with pupils getting involved with various activities including ‘Leader for a Day’, 
‘Chief Executive for a Day’ and ‘Councillor Question Time’.  More recently, schools have 
fedback to us that Local Democracy Week falls too early into the new school year and this 
often makes it difficult for schools to engage.  As a result, activities are programmed in as 
and when schools request them.

Results of the survey completed by councillors referenced earlier in this submission show 
that the amount of time individual councillors spend engaging with their communities varies 
as does the manner in which they carry out this engagement – whether this is via local 
surgeries or by attending public meetings.  

As already discussed in Part 1 of this submission, there is a formal role description for 
councillors which details the key purpose and duties of members.  In addition to the duty to 
effectively represent the Borough Council to the local community and vice versa, there is 
also a clear requirement for councillors to engage effectively with other organisations, 
including Parish and Town Councils and the County Council. 

Over the last decade significant advances in technology mean that residents are increasingly 
able to find out information they may historically have relied on their councillor for.  The use 
of the internet has replaced the need for many residents to contact the council directly and 
this in turn has increased the ability to ‘self-serve’.  Indeed the Council has invested in 
‘electronic’ government to enable residents to access our services through the web and to 
communicate with us effectively by email.  Whilst few councillors reported that they interact 
with constituents using social media or via blogs, there is a desire for increased usage of this 
kind of communication moving forward.

The Borough Council operates customer contact centres in both the Guildhall in Newcastle 
town centre and also in Kidsgrove Town Hall.  The Police service have a presence at both of 
these locations, as do staff from social care.  Residents are able to contact staff regarding 
building control issues at the Guildhall and several voluntary sector organisations also 
deliver services from the location.

The Council Offices now houses staff from the Police service and the local healthcare trust.  
This co-location makes it significantly easier for residents to access information and services 
than previously was the case.  Development of the new public sector hub over the next 18 
months will result in services being even more streamlined with access to many public 
services under one roof.



Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 
18

Part Four – The Future 

“The Commission understands that the role of local authorities is constantly changing.  In 
particular, changes such as the introduction of elected mayors in some parts of England 
have significantly altered the nature of decision-making and role of elected members.  
Equally, many local authorities have not seriously considered the size of their council since 
the introduction of Executive/Scrutiny functions over a decade ago.  We are aware that a 
number of local authorities have changed or intend to change their governance 
arrangements by reverting from executive and scrutiny models to committee administrations.  
The pace of change for authorities is likely to continue into the foreseeable future.  That is 
why you should consider future trends and developments when coming to conclusions on 
council size.”

LGBCE Technical Guidance 2012

FINANCE

Like all district councils across the country, the Borough continues to face the prospect of 
operating within a severely challenging financial environment.  Further large decreases in 
general government funding means that the council must review the services that it provides 
and its approach to value for money to keep council tax increases as low as possible.  

The Council plans its finances over a 5-year rolling programme in its Medium Term Financial 
Strategy (MTFS).  This longer-term view is designed to highlight at an early stage where the 
Council may have financial challenges and the level of resources it is likely to have available 
beyond the current financial year.

This helps to identify future issues in order that a timely and planned approach can be taken 
to address a shortfall in resources, a reprioritisation of spending or indeed where additional 
resources are available, where they should be invested.  The MTFS has identified significant 
shortfalls over the next five years which need to be addressed.

A Budget Review Group was established in 2012 comprising the Council Leader, the 
Portfolio Holder for Finance, IT and Customer Services, the Chief Executive and the 
Executive Directors.  The Group oversees all aspects of the budget preparation process.  A 
service challenge process was conducted by the Group in 2012 which lead to the setting up 
of a project called Newcastle 2020 which commenced at the end of 2013.  

The project consists of a number of different work streams which include: financial modelling 
of services with significantly reduced resources; income maximisation and methods for 
reducing bureaucracy.  In addition a number of options are being developed which aim to 
assist the council to sustain services in light of reduced funding.  These include demand 
management, self-service delivery, procurement efficiencies and cost sharing with partners 
and other organisations.

Efficiencies have been realised in the form of a review of vacant posts within the Council, 
together with a number of service restructures following the departure of senior staff and a 
number of flexible retirements.  

Whilst the reduction in the Council’s funding has not lead to cuts in front-line services it is 
recognised that the organisation is much leaner in terms of the size of its workforce and as a 
consequence has had to find ways to work more efficiently.  In contrast, until now, there has 



Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 
19

not been a similar rationalisation of the size of the Council.  It is anticipated that a reduction 
in the number of members in the range being considered could realise savings of between 
£40,300.00 and £60,500.00.

SERVICE DELIVERY

The Council has recently brought its waste and recycling service in-house.  The scheme has 
been completely overhauled and has involved the purchase of a new vehicle fleet and 
investment in new waste receptacles.  Whilst this is a major capital investment for the 
Council, it is envisaged that the changes will realise around £500,000 per annum in savings 
and will provide additional income from the sale of recyclable materials.

During the next 12-18 months the Council will have moved out of the current Civic Offices 
and will be based at the new Public Sector Hub which is currently under construction.  We 
will be joined in the new building by partners from the Police and the Staffordshire and Stoke 
on Trent Partnership NHS Trust.  The move to a purpose-built multi-agency hub will mean 
that service delivery will be even more streamlined and our residents will have access to 
services that are simple to access and economical to deliver.

LOCALISM AND POLICY DEVELOPMENT

As part of the Borough’s commitment to co-operative working we are keen to empower our 
communities to take the initiative to develop and improve community facilities to better meet 
their needs.

A number of developments are being considered which will support this co-operative aim.  
For example, it is envisaged that we will look to implement a programme which will enable 
community management of allotments.  Also, considerable work is already on-going to 
enable existing Community Centre Management Committees to take on the leases for their 
buildings and begin to run the facilities themselves for the benefit of the community.

ELECTORAL CYCLE

In November 2015, the Council resolved to move to a system of all-out elections once every 
four years.  The rationale behind this decision was based on the belief that the move would 
not only be more cost effective but would also achieve political stability and enable longer-
term view of policy development.

As discussed in Part 1 of this submission, following recommendations from the Peer Review 
Group the Council is in the process of disbanding some of its formal Committees.  In 
addition, there are plans to merge other Committees and for three existing committees to be 
established as member/officer working groups.

In September 2014 the Borough electorate stood at 97,558 which, given a Council size of 60 
means that the number of electors per councillor is 1,626.  When compared to our ‘nearest 
neighbours’ Newcastle has the largest council size and one of the lowest elector:councillor 
ratios

In proposing a reduction in the number of elected members, there is an acknowledgement 
that work will be undertaken to streamline the Council’s committee structure.  As a result it is 
considered that a total of 44 Councillors will be sufficient to run the business of the Council.



Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 
20

Conclusion

In a report to Council on 25 November 2015 reference was made to the views of the two 
independent members of the Governance Review Group:

‘We believe that at 60, the current council is too large.  Moving to a size of council in line with 
similar authorities should be proposed by the Council at the start of any LBGCE review.  We 
support the range of council size which has been recommended by the Committee but would 
urge you to a number at the lower end of this range.  In suggesting this we are aware of the 
implications for the size of the electorate within individual wards and in the context of the 
evidence we have heard, consider a number in the low forties to be sound for the needs of 
the Council and the community’.

The Council has taken into account a range of factors and evidence in the compilation of this 
submission.  It has concluded that a reduction in the current number of Councillors from 60 
to 44 would be appropriate based on the following reasoning:

1. Changes to the electoral cycle
In November 2015, Council resolved that Newcastle would move to all out elections every 4 
years.  During the consultation period prior to this resolution, feedback from members 
indicated that they feel that currently the Council is permanently in ‘election mode’.  This 
obviously places demands on Councillor’s time in terms of campaigning and of itself draws 
time and energy from delivering on the expectations of the community.  In practice, in any 
year in which there is an election, in the following year there is a relatively short time 
internally for the actions mandated through the election to be implemented and in which to 
progress major policy initiatives.

The change to all out elections will not only provide increased political stability and longer 
term policy development, but will also ease the burden on members in terms of their 
workload.

2. Governance Arrangements
It is envisaged that the changes and improvements planned to the Council’s governance 
arrangements will decrease the workload of Councillors in terms of their time commitment to 
attending formal meetings.  Planned improvements with regard to how information items are 
communicated to members will also reduce the size of agenda, reducing the length of 
meetings.

3. Workload and Working Practices
It is anticipated that the changes to the electoral cycle, together with changes that have 
been, and will be, implemented with regard to governance arrangements, will mean a 
reduced workload for elected members.  

The Council has invested in its approach to electronic government and is focused on 
ensuring that residents are able to access information freely via the internet and can ‘self-
serve’ many or our services, reducing the reliance on contacting councillors for routine 
queries. 

4. The financial position of the Council
In proposing a reduction from 60 to 44 Councillors, the Council has acknowledged how 
reduced central government funding has impacted on the way in which it delivers its 
services.  It is appropriate that the Council’s should consider how the structure of its 
governance arrangements should reflect these changes.  Whilst not the primary reason for 
the proposed reduction in Council size, the potential financial savings that could be realised 



Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 
21

cannot be discounted, particularly given the measures that are to be implemented to further 
reduce the workload burden for elected members

Newcastle-under-Lyme Borough Council recommends to the Local Government 
Boundary Commission for England that the council size be reduced from 60 to 44 
councillors, effective from May 2018.





Classification: NULBC PROTECT Organisational

Classification: NULBC PROTECT Organisational

NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT TEAM’S INFORMATION REPORT TO COUNCIL

7TH September 2016

PROPOSED NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME PUBLIC SECTOR HUB

Submitted by:      Executive Management Team

Portfolio: Policy, People and Partnerships, Finance, IT and Customer

Ward(s) affected: Town

Purpose

To inform the Council of a decision taken under the urgency provisions in Appendix 4 of the 
Council’s Constitution in respect of the approved scheme for the provision of a Public Sector Hub.

Recommendations

To note the discussion taken

Information

The report presented to the Leader and Deputy Leader is attached along with the minutes of 
the meeting is attached in Appendix 1. Members should note that the minutes in appendix 1 
are exempt information as defined in paragraphs 3 in Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local 
Government Act 1972.

The appendices referred to in the report are available on request. 





Classification: NULBC PROTECT Organisational

Classification: NULBC PROTECT Organisational

PROPOSED NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME PUBLIC SECTOR HUB

Briefing report to Leader and Deputy Leader – 27 July 2016

Submitted by: Executive Management Team

Ward(s) affected: Town

Purpose of the Briefing Report
To provide the Leader and Deputy Leader with a briefing on a proposed course of action which EMT 
intends to take under the urgency provisions set out in Appendix 4 of the Council’s constitution in 
respect of the approved scheme for the provision of a Public Sector Hub.

Advice to Leader and Deputy Leader of proposed EMT actions

(a) That the effects of the delay in the Ryecroft redevelopment project are noted and that 
the work on the Public Sector Hub continues.

(b) That due to the delay in the Ryecroft project, and the Council’s overall capital finance 
position, the changes to the financing arrangements of the Public Sector Hub project 
are agreed.   

(c) That officers ensure that the financial implications arising from the above 
recommendations are reflected in the forthcoming Medium Term Financial Strategy.

Reasons
The substantive business case for the proposed Public Sector Hub remains robust and the proposed 
course of action seeks to facilitate completion of the said scheme in the most economically 
advantageous manner from the Borough Council’s perspective.

1. Background and context
1.1 In November 2013, in-principle approval was given for officers to work with key
partners in the preparation of a full business case for the relocation of staff from the
Merrial Street Civic Offices (along with offices at the Guildhall and St George’s
Chambers), in order to facilitate comprehensive retail-led redevelopment of the
Ryecroft area and to contribute towards broader regeneration objectives for the town
centre.

1.2 Your officers, together with partner colleagues at the County Council and Police had
considered how their services could be accommodated more effectively and efficiently in
the future. Various options were considered at an outline business case stage which
led to a detailed business case being worked up for a new ‘Public Sector Hub’.

1.3 In September 2015, at a meeting of the Council, approval was given for officers to proceed with 
delivery of the Public Sector Hub project on the basis of a full business case which had been prepared 
in that regard. A separate report in respect of the redevelopment of the Ryecroft site was included on 
the same Council meeting agenda and it was approved for officers to work with Henry Davidson 
Developments (HDD), the preferred developer, to facilitate delivery of that scheme. There was a clear 
understanding that the two schemes were intrinsically linked because the latter scheme required, as 
part of the overall scheme proposals, redevelopment of the current Civic Offices site.

1.4 Members accepted the conclusions of the detailed business case exercise in respect of
the proposed Public Sector Hub and authorised officers to take the following steps
in partnership with Staffordshire County Council (SCC) and the Police & Crime
Commissioner’s Office (PCC):



Classification: NULBC PROTECT Organisational

Classification: NULBC PROTECT Organisational

A. To proceed with the construction of a Public Sector Hub on the ‘preferred site’ of the 
former St. Giles and St. George’s School, Barracks Road, Newcastle-under-Lyme on the basis 
set out in this report, which will require the following key actions:

(a) NBC (freeholder) to grant SCC a long term ground leasehold interest (or any other 
interest deemed appropriate, in consultation with the relevant Portfolio Holder) on the 
preferred site.

(b) SCC to take the lead (developer) role in commissioning the Hub and when
completed, NBC and PCC to be granted long term occupational leases of agreed
areas of accommodation by SCC on a “not for profit” (cost recovery only) basis
(any variation in commissioning approach to be agreed with the relevant Cabinet
Portfolio Holder(s)).

(c) That capital and revenue budgets as stated within the business case are made
available for the development of the Hub and to prepare services for the transition
into new ways of working.

(d) To formalise and implement an organisational cultural change programme on the
basis described in the report.

(e) To establish robust project governance arrangements including reporting to
relevant Cabinet Portfolio Holders.

B. That in addition to the Civic Offices site, the properties below be declared surplus to 
requirements once the Public Sector Hub is complete and approval is given to release them at 
the most appropriate time in consultation with the relevant Portfolio Holder:

a) Offices at Sidmouth Avenue, Newcastle (former SCC leasehold Registrars
accommodation) – freehold disposal.

b) Offices at St. George’s Chambers, Merrial Street, Newcastle – leasehold disposal on the 
basis described in this report.

C. Customer Service Centre, Guildhall, High Street, Newcastle – that officers be
authorised to take all necessary steps to bring forward viable, detailed proposals for
the use of The Guildhall for community and/or voluntary sector purposes, on a full repairing 
leasehold basis, as summarised in the report.

1.5 As part of the detailed business case, an options appraisal was undertaken using the
approach and techniques previously adopted for the County Council’s “Staffordshire
Place” project. This process looked at three key factors;

A. Cost/Affordability
B. Non-Financial Benefits
C. Risk

1.6 It was agreed at an early stage of the project that each of the three main partners
would determine its own accommodation requirements and be responsible for their
respective proportions for the full 60 year life of the building. Members may recall that
architects were commissioned to prepare an indicative building design to reflect these
requirements in order to confirm a building cost estimate for the purposes of financial
and affordability modelling.

1.7 For each of the three options, a combined “whole-life cost” model was developed



Classification: NULBC PROTECT Organisational

Classification: NULBC PROTECT Organisational

which took into account all the property-related costs of ownership, in respect of NBC
and SCC as property owners and also Staffordshire Police and NHS (SSOTP) as
tenants. This combined model identified the most economically advantageous option
from the overall public purse. The whole life cost model included both Capital and
Revenue considerations over a notional asset life of 60 years.

1.8 An estimated total combined cost (Net Present Value – a calculation that compares the
amount invested today to the present value of future cash) of the three options was
calculated over a 60 year period; this identified Option 2 (new full Civic Hub) to be the most 
financially advantageous, with Option 1 (“do minimum” option of remodelling and refurbishing the 
current Civic Offices) being the most expensive. 

1.9 Whilst NBC’s contribution towards building costs was estimated to be around £4.6m
(34% of £13.7m), the overall capital costs for Option 2 (Full Hub) amounted to about
£6.1m (once other costs such as ICT, equipment and project delivery costs were taken into account). 

1.10 As stated above the whole life cost model exercise identified that Option 2 ‘Full Hub’ would be 
the most economically advantageous over the 60 years lifetime of the building. The reasons for that 
were that it would offer greatest financial savings, as well as non-financial benefits when compared to 
the other options and that the savings and benefits significantly outweighed the potential risks that this 
option is subject to.

1.11 Each of the options were assessed for affordability by comparing the
average annual required budgets against existing (based on year 2014/15) budgets. It
was assumed that each authority would be entirely responsible for expenditure incurred on their 
exclusively occupied areas and contributes proportionally to communal areas within
the new Hub. The report indicated that for Option 2 (Full Hub), the Borough Council would  be 
required to contribute about 34% of the overall costs.

2. Issues

2.1. In making the decision to proceed with the project Members were satisfied about the affordability 
of the Civic Hub in the context of the Ryecroft scheme. Critically important considerations in this 
regard were:

 The cost of the new Civic Hub and the proportion of this that the Borough Council
would need to bear;

 The annual cost savings to the Borough Council consolidating its office
accommodation in the new Hub;

 The financial offer from HDD in respect of the overall Ryecroft site and the likely
proportion of the receipt that the Borough Council would expect to receive.

2.2 The key question was whether the Borough Council could afford its proportion of these
capital costs taking account of revenue-related implications too. A complex financial
model was assembled in order that all known and anticipated property-related
costs could be fully compared across the three options under consideration. These
costs were reviewed against the backdrop of existing budgets in the chosen
baseline financial year of 2014/15. A summary of the key information was provided in
the report to Council in September 2015. It is important to note that for financial modelling purposes 
it was assumed that each party would borrow their respective share of the capital
funding requirement to build and fit-out any new hub building although it should be noted that the 
Borough Council’s preference, at that time, was to actually fund its’ interest in the new building 
through upfront capital contributions. In summary it was intended that the NBC cost proportion in 
respect of the Hub (£6.1m) would be met partly from the disposal of
property (including the Ryecroft site) and other capital resources.



Classification: NULBC PROTECT Organisational

Classification: NULBC PROTECT Organisational

2.3 The financial analysis demonstrated that Option 2 (Full Hub), would offer NBC the largest annual 
saving as follows:

 The average yearly cost of Option 1 (£1,888k) less the average yearly cost of
Option 2 (£1,346k) produces an average cost saving of £541k over a 60 year
period.

 Members were advised that this saving would be made up of two parts:

o £114k - current budget saving (this can be regarded as the worst-case
scenario from a revenue efficiency perspective);

o £427k - budget requirement that would be required in the MTFS (Medium
Term Financial Strategy) under Option 1.

2.4 Analysis of Option 1, ‘Do Minimum’ (refurbishment of the existing Civic Offices), indicated that 
there was (and still is) a growing maintenance backlog that had been commuted over 60 years (whole 
life). If the backlog was to be addressed and the building brought up to standard, then expenditure 
would be required of £26m over the 60 year period (this timescale chosen for reasons of consistency 
in comparing the options). In addition it was noted that there would remain significant operational 
inefficiencies arising from both the dispersed pattern of buildings and the inherent problems 
associated with the age and configuration of the existing building stock.

2.5 As matters stand currently a great deal of work has been undertaken since last September in order 
to expedite delivery of the new Hub building to enable vacant possession of the current Civic Offices 
by the target date required by HDD (about mid-2017). The current programme and related costs are 
consistent with the budgetary approval previously given for the scheme and work has commenced 
including demolition of the former school building and commencement of the ground preparation 
works, with planning permission for the new building having been secured. The Council’s share of the 
costs incurred to date is about £940k. 

2.6 The key issue that has emerged in recent weeks is that HDD has reviewed its position in respect of 
the Ryecroft scheme following the so-called “Brexit” decision. Your officers met with their 
representatives last week and there was discussion around a ‘proposal’ from HDD as to how they 
wished to proceed with that scheme and that position was submitted formally to the Council yesterday 
(see confidential Appendix A). The key implication of the latter is that the Council’s share of the 
capital receipt would not now be realised until the spring of 2018, some nine months later than had 
been intended. 

2.7 The consequences of the deferred receipt, taken together with the Council’s shortage of capital 
funds, means that the Council needs to consider its’ approach to the two projects. At this stage the 
County Council has been informed that the Borough Council is unable to support the project 
proceeding until it has clarified its’ position, particularly in respect of the approach to financing.

2.8 Given that there was a substantive business case to proceed with the Civic Hub, and that the 
Council has already committed substantial funding on the project to date, the main issue is how the 
Council approaches the funding of its share so that the project can proceed to completion. For the sake 
of clarity it should be noted that the original option 1 (refurbish the existing Civic Offices) would be 
significantly less justifiable now than at the time of reporting to Council in September 2015 because 
the Borough Council would not only have to incur the capital cost of refurbishing the building on its 
own but it would have lost the income from the partner tenants which amounts to about £350k p.a.

2.9 This decision needs to be made as a matter of urgency because your officers have been advised 
that the cost of suspending works on the new Hub building is around £25k per week (plus overheads 
and profits, so likely to be towards £30k); this is a cost that would have to be borne by the Borough 
Council. It should be noted that these costs would be likely to escalate over time (taking account of 
impacts on programme delays, risk of rising cost of materials, etc.) so there is a risk of substantial 



Classification: NULBC PROTECT Organisational

Classification: NULBC PROTECT Organisational

financial implications to this Council, as well as the risk of legal action being taken against us by our 
partners.

3. Options Considered
3.1. For the reasons explained above the only realistic consideration at this stage is in relation to the 
Council’s approach to financing its contribution towards the Public Sector Hub project.

4. Proposed EMT action
4.1 To proceed with partners in the delivery of the new Civic Hub on the basis
described in this report.

5. Reasons for Preferred Solution
5.1 It enables delivery of the previously-approved Civic Hub project for all the reasons cited in the 
previous report to Council and protects the Council’s financial exposure in this regard.

6. Outcomes Linked to Sustainable Community Strategy and Corporate Priorities
6.1 Implementation of the Civic Hub project will contribute positively towards the
corporate priority relating to “Borough of Opportunity” by both enabling and directly
delivering significant investment and job outcomes for the benefit of the local
economy.

6.2 It will enhance delivery of more effective and efficient services on a more coordinated,
multi-agency, basis consistent with the key objectives associated with
being a Co-operative Council.

7. Legal and Statutory Implications
7.1 The proposal is consistent with the well-being powers of the Local Authority as
conferred by the Local Government Act 2000 (as amended).

7.2 The Council is obliged to achieve ‘best consideration’ when disposing of any property
assets in accordance with S.123 of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended).

7.3 The Council is under a duty to achieve best value / value for money in the ways that
it procures goods and services.

8. Equality Impact Assessment
8.1 There are no such implications arising from this report.

9. Financial Implications
9.1 The delay in the Ryecroft project outlined above will have a significant impact on the 
Council’s resources in two ways in respect of the Civic Hub project – i.e. additional holding 
costs and financing costs.

9.2 There will be additional holding costs incurred on retaining ownership of the Civic Offices 
for a further 9 months. These will include the business rates liability for the building (after 
allowing for 3 months empty property rates) together with costs involved in securing the 
building.

9.3 The delay in receiving the capital receipt from HDD (in respect of the Ryecroft 
redevelopment scheme), together with the Council’s overall capital financial position, will 
mean that the Council will have to borrow, at least in the short term, to finance its interest in  
the Public Sector Hub project.

9.4 Whilst the financial and affordability modelling for the Public Sector Hub assumed that 
the capital costs would be funded from borrowing (i.e. there was a clear business case for 



Classification: NULBC PROTECT Organisational

Classification: NULBC PROTECT Organisational

the project if it was financed by borrowing), the proposal that was agreed by the Council at 
its meeting on 23 September 2015 was to fund the project from a combination of the HDD 
(Ryecroft) receipt, capital receipts generated from asset sales and capital receipts from Right 
to Buy sales. The delay in receiving the HDD receipt, together with the delays in generating 
receipts from asset sales, will mean that in the short term prudential borrowing will be 
incurred. The Council approved the use of borrowing, when required, in the Annual Treasury 
Management Strategy that is agreed at its February meeting each year.

9.5 The estimated revenue costs of the above issues are in the region of £40k in the current 
financial year and approximately £300k in the 2017/18 financial year. This will have to be 
factored in to the Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) as a pressure. The 
MTFS will be considered by the Cabinet at their meeting in September.   

10. Major Risks
10.1. The major risks at this stage are financial in nature. By approaching the financing of the 
Council’s interests in the Civic Hub in the manner set out in the report, the Council’s exposure to risk 
is mitigated to the best extent possible. 

10.2 With regard to the Ryecroft scheme it is hoped that the deferral of the scheme will allow the 
investment markets to settle down and that it will be able to proceed on the revised timescale.

11. Key Decision Information
11.1 This is a key decision to proceed with the scheme on the basis described and particularly in the 
best financial interests of the Council.

12. Background papers
12.1 The project is supported by a comprehensive and complex series of financial
modelling spreadsheets as well as a wide range of technical documents, including the building’s 
design (which has been granted planning permission).

13. Appendices
Confidential Appendix A – email from HDD dated 26 July 2016
Confidential Appendix B – email from Kier to Staffordshire Council dated 21 July 2016.

14. Earlier Cabinet/Committee Resolutions
23.09.2015; Report to Council – authority to proceed with the Civic Hub and ryecroft projects on the 
basis set out in the reports.
27.11.2013; Report to Council - authority to demolish and proceed with Ryecroft marketing, authority 
to work with partners on the business case for Civic Offices relocation.
28.07.2010; Report to Council - Freehold Acquisition of former Sainsbury's and establish whether 
there is a business case to relocate from Civic Offices.



Better Care Fund cuts in Staffordshire

This Council notes that Staffordshire County Council is facing a £15m shortfall as a result of 
Staffordshire CCGs removing their contribution to the Better Care Fund and that Staffordshire 
County Council’s response to this shortfall is a series of swingeing, unfair and potentially damaging 
cuts which will disproportionately affect older and vulnerable people in our communities.

This Council further notes that the cuts identified by Staffordshire County Council are focussed on:

 Scrapping the ‘Casserole Club’ which supports at home hot meals for older people
 Reducing funding to prevent ‘Social Isolation & Loneliness’ in Staffordshire, inc. Newcastle
 Cutting funding for Carers Services – affecting 14,731 people in Newcastle alone.
 Ending ‘Crisis Support’ meaning Newcastle BC will no longer be able to assist the most 

vulnerable people who have been offered a home due to homelessness to gain support from 
the Crisis Support Fund towards food, fuel and white goods. 

 Restricting support for Direct Payment and ending the ‘Self Advocacy’ service which provides 
help and support to disabled people in Staffordshire to make the most of their direct 
payments and have a voice to tell Staffordshire County Council what isn’t working well. 

This Council believes that these changes, which the County Council claim are necessary because of 
funding shortfalls, will have an severely adverse impact on the older, disabled and vulnerable people 
in Staffordshire.  

This Council further believes that the saving achieved by these savage cuts (£3.725) represents a 
false economy whereby the overall cost to the public sector will increase due to the more acute 
services the older, vulnerable and disabled people may access as a result of being abandoned by the 
County Council. 

This Council resolves that:

1. the Council Leader write to the Leader of Staffordshire County Council to set out our 
opposition to these changes as outlines above. 

2. the Cabinet and Executive Management Team investigate repatriating the Disabled Facilities 
Grant funding to Newcastle Borough Council from Staffordshire County Council in order to 
be able to continue to support Newcastle residents in need of adaptations. 

3. The response from Newcastle Borough Council to these changes reiterate our objection to 
these changes. 

Proposed: Councillor Gareth Snell 22nd August 2016

Seconded : Councillor Dave Jones 22nd August 2016








	Agenda
	3 Minutes of a previous meeting
	5 Reports of the Chairs of the Scrutiny Committees
	6 Reports of the Chairs of the Regulatory Committees
	7 COUNCIL SIZE SUBMISSION TO THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT BOUNDARY COMMISSION FOR ENGLAND
	Council Size Submission 240816 v6 (2)

	8 Civic Hub and Ryecroft
	Report re Civic Hub 27 July 2016

	9 Notice of Motion
	14 Civic Hub and Ryecroft

